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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 . 

VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL AND FAC'AIMILE 

Joseph B. Sandler, Esq. 
Sandler, Reiff & Young, P.C. 
300M Stn:et, SE 
Suite 1102 
Wallllngton. DC 20003 

Facsimile: (202) 479-1115 

Dear Mr. Sandler: 

January 26, 2011 

RE: MUR. 6451 
MoveOn.org and Wes Boyd. in 
his official capacity as treasurer 

On August 7, 2009, we notified your clients, MoveOn.org and Wes Boyd, in his official 
capar.ity as ttasurer, (the •'Committee") that it had been referred to the Office of General 
Counsel for its apparent failure to file four 48-Hour Notices of twelve independent expenditures 
totalia& $SS1 ,082.36 and two 24-Haur NotiMs of independent expenditures IDtalin& 
$158,393.02, in accordance with 2 U.S.C.§434(g). On January 19, 2011, tbe Commission 
found reason to believe that your clients violated 2 U.S.C. §434(a) and 11 C.P.R. 1104.4(b) and 
(c), provisions of the Ad. and the Commission's regulations. Enclosed is the Factual and Lepl 
Analysis that sets forth the basis for the Commission's determinatiOJL 

Pl._e note that J10U have a legal obligation to JRSClVC all documtllts,lllCOI'ds and 
malldalt relaliD& ta dais 111111er .uilmiCh time • J<J• are notified tU1 tba Cmmnissioa bu 
claad its file in thil mattm Sarli U.S.C.§IS19. 
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We look forward to your msponse. 

Bncloswa 
Factual and Legal Analysis 
Conciliation Agreement 

On behalf of the Commission, 
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I'EDERAL ELECI'ION COMMISSION 

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANAL YSlS 

RESPONDENTS: MoveOn.org and Wes Boyd, MUR: 64S I 
in his official capacity as tnasumr 

L BACJ(GROUND 

This matter was generated based on information ascertained by the Federal 

Election Commission ("the Comm.ission'') in the normal caune of carrJing out its 

supervi1my •pomibilifi•. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(2). The R.epads Aaalysis Di¥isiou 

("RAID'') mfemtd MovaOia.org and Wes Boyd, in his offioill oapacity as 1ltuiatet; (the 

"Committee" or "Respondents'') to the Office of General Counsel mr failing to file four 

48-Hour Notices of iDdependent expenditures totaling $557,082.36 and for failins to file 

two 24-Hour Notices of independent expenditures totaling $158,393.02. 

On August 7, 2009, this Office notified the Respondents of the referral in 

accorclance with the Commission's policy reprding notification in non-complaint 

generated matters. 74 Fed.Reg. 38617 (August 4, 2009). In its response to the 

notification, received by the Commission on August 31, 2009, the Committee requests 

that the Commission take no lbrtba action as CD the Committee's faU\n tu file the 

ll<lla1 in <!llfllt.ion, or, ila the alt.IDlitive, 1efer the :utter to the ColllllliSiion's Altemdive 

Di1pute Raalution Oiliee. Tlae CanaiM=e claims tllat tbe reports •• timely preporecl 

utiliziog tho Commission's FBCFILE softwam. However, it claims tbat tbree oftha 48-

Hour Notices in question did not upload to the Commission, and that the fourth 48-Hour 

Notice uploaded, but for unknown reasons, contained data from a previously tiled 48-

Hour Notice. The Committee did not specifically address its failure to file the two 24-

. Hour Notices. The Committee does claim that the failme to properly file the reports was 
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1 inadvertent, and may have been caused by either human or computer error. Finally, the 

2 Committee states that it is taking steps to verify that future notices will be successfully 

3 filed with the Commission. 

4 As discussed below, it does not appear that the failures to file the notices resulted 

S from problems with the Commission's software, and were instead the result of the 

6 Committee's errors. Aa:mdingly, the Commission found reason to believe that the 

7 Committee violated 2l1.S.C. § 434(1) ana 11 C.llR.l f 104.4(b) and (c), and adaerimcl 

8 pre-probable cause coaciliatian with the Committee. 

9 II. FACTUAL AND LIGAL ANALYSIS 

10 An independmt expendililre is an apcaditula mat expressly advocates the 

11 ·election or defeat of a clearly identified Federal candidate and that is not made in concert 

12 or cooperation with, or at the request or suggestion o( the candidate or his or her 

13 committee or agent. 2 U.S.C. § 431(17). 

14 A political committee that makes or contracts to make independent expenditures 

15 ·aggregating S 10,001 or more with respect to a given election at any time during a · 

16 calendar year up to and includiq fbe 20• dily before the Ute of an eldon shall tim a 

17 rep.-t dcul:ribiq tl~t eupmditums wilbin 41 ho~a. 2 U.S.C. § 434(1)(2); 11 C.F.R. 

18 § 104.4(b)(2). The reports,lmcawn as 48 .. Hour Notices, must be filad bi tbe encl af1be 

19 second day "followiaa the date on which a COIDIBimication that coostituta an 

20 independent expenditure is publicly distributed or otherwise pubHcly disseminated." 

21 11 C.P.R. § 104.4(b)(2). The Committee shall file ~tional reports within 48 hours 

22 after each time it makes or contracts to make independent expenditures aggregating an 

23 additioaal S 10,000. Id 
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In addition, a political committee that makes or contracts to make independent 

expenditures agreptiq $1,000 or more with respect to a given election after the 2cl' 

day, but more than 24 hours before the date of an election, shall file a report describing 

the expenditures within 24 hours. 2 U.S.C. § 434(&)(1): 11 C.F.R. § 104.4(c). The 

reports, known as 24-Hour Notices, must be filed within 24 hours "following the date on 

which a communication that coDStitutes an independent expencHture is 'publicly 

distril1alted • otherwisll puhilicly di--.illltGcl." 11 C.F .R. § 1 04.4(c). The CalllllliU2e 

shadr file acldilional~eporla withiD1 24 houra ak eaah time it maims or eoDIIBCts to make 

indepeact.nt expaaditures aggregatiag an additioual S1 ,000. ld. 

A. 48-Hour Notices 

On October 13, 2008, the Committee filed its 2008 October Quarterly Report, 

which included a Schedule E disclosina 87 independent expenditures totalins $4,091,644 

in support of or opposition to Federal candidates in the 2008 general election. However, 

the Committee failed to file four 48-Hour Notices for 12 of the iDclepenclent expenditures 

totaling $557,082.36. See RAD Referral, Attachment 2. 

On Nowmber 19, 20GB, RAD sellt a Request for Additicmal Infoamatillz 

("RF AI'') to the Conalittee refcawlng the 2008 Octoaer Quarterly Report and the 

Committee's failure to file the ~uired 48-Hour Notines c-.f indepB11de11t axpm:lliitm-. 

. On December 19, 2008, the Cammittee's aosistaot trlalura" COBtacted RAD and stated 

that after he received the RFAI, he reviewed the Committee's data file and realized the 

notices had been prep~ but had not been filed. Referral at 2. He acknowlqed that 

the Committee bad not received confirmation receipts for the notices. ld. The 

Committee then filed a Miscellaneous Electronic Submission stating that it had "prepared 
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I and closed these reports in its software" and believed that the reports were properly tiled 

2 utilizing the Commission's FBCFILE software. Referral at 3. The Committee provided a 

3 copy of its electronic file to demonstrate that the assistant treasurer had prepared the 

4 notices. ld 
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In its response to the zeferral notification, the Committee again maintains that the 

notices were timely prepared using the Commission's software. In addition, the 

CoanilUJ.= sugelts ·riJat it is pollible that tllJI n•tices -.. nfJt filed becaus. Dllilha-

bua181l or~ lmtr. R.apcase It 3. Tbe Ooaunittee ulso claiml dlat oa oftbe 41-

H._. Natir.es of indepeodalt expendi!ures tataling $219,651.76 \vas prepared aDd ~Jed, 

but that for unknown reasons, the report camained data &om a 48-Hour Notice originally 

filed in May 2008. Jd. The Committee suggests that the Commission's software may 

have substituted the previously submitted data for the data entered by the Committee. Jd 

B. Z4-Bour Notices 

On December 2, 2008, the Committee filed its 2008 30-clay Post-General report, 

·which included a Schedule B 4isclosing 41 independent expenditures totaling 

SS02, 794.34 in siipJJOrt of or oppositiG1l to Pede:al Olllldidates in the 2008 poeral 

electiCID. However, tlu: COIII'IIliltee faiJDd to file two 24-Har No1i.ces far c.ight 

indepmadeDt expenditllres totaling $158,393.Qi .. See RAD Refmlli, Attaduneaa 3. 

On Febmary 2D, 2009, RAD RCt•llFAI to thl= CmllmiU. ~the 30-

Day Post-General report and the Committee's failure to file requirecl24-Hour Notices of 

independent expenditures.• On February 26, 2009, the Committee filed a Miscellaneous 

. 1 Till RFJ.alectualUy idmti&d 11ine iudepai._ ex,..n ... ~ S 117,915.32 for wbicb 24-Ho• 
Notices had DOt bleD filed. The Committee explained to RAD that one of the questioaed lndepeDcleDt 
expeaditures IDtaliftl 129.522.30 was a residual payment for BD estimated expenditure that was previously 
discl.oled. 11aerefcn. RAD did n8t include the expend~ in the refenal. 
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1 Electronic Submission in response to the RF AI and acknowledged that it bad failed to file 

2 two 24-Hour Notices for the eight independent expenditures disclosed on the 2008 30-

3 day Post-General report. The Submission stated that the Committee did not realize that 

4 . the notices had not been filed until it received the RF AI. Again, the Committee provided 

S its data file to demonstrate that one of the notices was prepared tor filing, but had not 

6 been filed. In its l'elpOIIBe to the referral notilleatiGD, the Commitme •knGWledps that it 

7 omitteta disbunelnent far $5,800 made to Hot;i~llb.com in aae of the,.,..... 24-H.u-

8 Notice~,. licnrev•, it did not specitioally aclcb:ess its faiha ta file the 24-HDUr NotiGOI. 

9 Instead, u previously noted. it pneraUy referenced eitlu:r human or computer error 

10 related to its failure to file the notices. 

11 c. Allalysil 

12 The Committee is responsible for assuring that notices are filed, not merely 

13 prepared. See 2 U.S.C. § 434(g)(l)(2) (a committee making an independent expenditure. 

14 •'sbalJftle" a report describing the expenditure) (emphasis added). The Committee 

1 S violated the Act when it failed to file four 48-How Notices of independent expenditures 

16 totaling $557,082.36 and ·when it failed ta file two 24-Hour Notices of independent 

17 expcmdians tatalinl $151,]93.02. 

18 Ia its response. the Cnmnia. stabll tbat dill filiba to file the DDtiaDs was 

19 inadverteat and &.at each specific failure may have been the result of either human or 

20 computer error. Response at 3. Portions of the response appear to acknowledge that the 

21 Committee's assistant treasurer simply made mistakes during the filing process ("failure 

22 to properly upload these four reports was inadvertent and possibly caused by technical 

23 problems in using the Commission's software") (emphasis added), but elsewhere in the 
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rcs)XJDie, the Respondents appear to allege problems with the FEC intake process (i.e. 

"the FEC software submitted data fiom an earlier 48-hour filing ftom May 2008 rather 

than the data prepared for the September 1Oth filiq" and "although it appears that the 

·four reports were timely prepared and queued for filing, it appean as though three reports 

did not successfully upload with your officej. Response at 2-4. 

lftlte filius IBil1lre resulted tiu-m hUIDIID error by tiD: Cmn.-nittee's staff. this error 

would not ex1a.lbe violmen. Furttur. it does not lli'P• tbat Ca.dil8ion •111p11tlr 

issua J*'VCftted the Cammittae from timely filillll t!ua required 48-Haur and 24-H~i>ur 

Notas, or that au FEC softwate failUII: caused - Co•umittr.e to iDCOl'leCtly file a 

previously-filed notice. Instead. for the followiaa..,ns, it appears that the Committee 

simply failed to file the required notices, and in the case of the previously-filed no~ce. 

filed the wrong report in error. 

First, MoveOn.org is a very experienced political committee with a long history 

of filing these types of reports. MoveOn.org reJisterecl with the Commission in 1999 and 

bas tiled disclosure reports with the Commission for almost 11 years. In the Committee•s 

response to the refemd notification, the assistant tmsuier claims cmr 20 yem 

expm~ in filill& CoiDIIUslion reparts, wliich would lllclud• WIB on bellilf of1bis 

Commitme md fbr other politiad CCIIOl'.aittlas. Respoase at 2. F11rtlwr, dmiag &he 

election cycle in question, the Committee successtiJy filed ovm fiiy 48-Hour and 24-

Haur Notices, and for each of the DOdces, the Committee received a coDfinnadon receipt 

indicatins successful filiJI8. 

In addition, there is no infonnation suggesting that MoveOn.org experienced 

filing difliculties that would bave prompted the Committee to contact the Commission 



... 
t'\1 
00 
CP 
(!) 
tn 
~ • (!) 
1"!1!1 
..... 

1 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1.3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

MUR 645l(Move0n.Ora) 
Factual and Lepl Analysis 

7 

seeking assistance to resolve those difficulties. In fact, according to the Commission's 

Electronic Filing Office, which keeps detailed logs of all requests for technical support. 

the Committee's assistant treasurer contacts the Commission regularly, and on July IS, 

2008, before MoveOn.org•s required notices were due, the usistant treasurer contacted 

the Commission repnling an unre1atecl report for a different committee because he had 

not received contirmatiaa. tbat the n.-pmt WEI filed. However, the Commissiorl received 

no l'lllioe flum the Reaponcl.u tiUI riley wt1111e havilll difticulty filinu tHe notiCGS in 

notices that it believed had been filed. In actdilion, the .Blec111Dnic F.ilina Office received 

no reports of difficulty with films reports or notices from any committee at the time tbat 

the Respondents were required to file the notices. 

With regard to the 48-Hour Notice that Respondents claim was filed with 

incorrect information, the Electronic Filing Office indicates that the software would not 

have substituted incorrect or outdated information into the form. Each time a political 

committee determines that it is appropriate to file a notice or report, the filer accesses a 

fonn on the !'BCPILE softwln. nat fonD is CIDpiJ 1D1til the filer iDpatB the infOJmation. 

Wla it il thaa to electrOnic:.lly file, the m. 1£Ces11s the lep8rt • aotice 81111 uplmm it 

to tb1 Commiuion. Oi1Bil these &cts, it !s lilr•ly that tbl ass\lfaat ~ m thia matW 

20 accessed ancl uploaded the wrona report 

21 Filially, durin& conversations with RAD in responses to the RF Als, the 

22 Committee aclmowledpd that althoup it pnpamcl the notices, they wen not filed with 

23 the Commission. Referral at 2. None of the submissions made in response to the RF Als 
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alleges an agency computer error. While the Committee's response to the referral 

notification questions whether the failure was due to human or possibly computer error, it 

is rasonable to expect that the Respondents would have expUcidy raised any such issues 

at the time they were fiJst advised of the missing reports. 

Because the Committee failed to file the notices with the Commission, the 

Commission found reason to belieYe that MoveOn.org and Wes Boyd, in his official 

capacity 81 tmasurer. violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(11) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.4(b) UBI (c). 
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 10481 

CELA 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

BY: 

SUBJECT: 

RE: 

The Commission 

Christopher Hughey 
Acting General Counsel 

Kathleen M. Gnith 
Acting Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 

Stephen Gura 
Deputy Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 

Peter G. Blumberg D, fl 
Assistant General Counsel \ {( ~ 

wanda o. Brown \ ~g \, rll. 
Attorney \ ~~ 

MUR 6451 (MoveOn.arg and Wes Boyd, in his official capacity 
as treasurer) 

Pre-Probable Cause Conciliation Agreement 

27 ACTIONS RECOMMENDED 
28 

c._ 
c::: 
r-

1 
c..n 

l> 

w 
.r:: 

29 (1) Accept the signed conciliation agreement; (2) approve the appropriate letters; 
30 and (3) close the file. 
31 
32 DISCUSSION 
33 
34 Attached is a conciliatiotl agreement signed by counsel on behalf of MoveOn.Org 
35 and Wes Boyd, in his official capacity as treasurer, (the .. Committee" or uRespondents"). 
36 The agreement would settle violations of2 U.S.C. § 434(g) and 11 C.P.R.§ 104.4(b) and 
37 (c) stemming from the Committee's failure to file four 48-Hour Notices of independent 
38 expenditures totaling $557,082.36 and two 24-Hour Notices of independent expenditures 
39 totaling $158,393.02. 
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MUR 6451 (MoveOn.Org) 
Memorandum to the Commission 2 

I The agreement recites the 
pertinent facts of this matter and contains admissions to violations of the Act and the 
Commission's regubltiona, as well as an DgJ.'COIJlent to cease 111d desist from further 
violations. I 

the agreement also includes several 
contentions at page three, paragraph IV. 7. Respondents contend that the failure to file the 
missing notices was the result of an inadvertent administr.1tive or technical error, and that 
the Committee did not know that the nofices were not ftled wit!l the Commission undl it 
recei,red Requests for Additional Imonnation ("RFAis") from tbe Comminsion' a Reports 
Analysis Diviai~m ("RAD"). Furthes, &espondents contend that some of the notices were: 
not uploaded to the CoiDID.ission• even thangh the Committee had prepared elcrctronic 
submissions using FECfile software, and that one 48-Hour Notice was uploaded but that 
it contained inaccurate data, specifically. information from a previously filed notice.1 

Finally, Respondents maintain in their contention language that prior to and after the 
notices in question, they have successfully and timely filed 24- and 48-Hour Notices of 
independent expenditures, and that in response to the Connnission 's enforcement action, 
have instituted pt'OCedun..-s to ensure that notices ~R timely flied with the Co1mnission. 

I Therefore, we recommend that the Commission accept the signed 
conciliation agreement, approve the appropriate letters, and close the ftle. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

I. Accept the signed conciliation agreement; 

2. Approve the appropriate letters; and 

3. Close the file. 

1 As noted in the First General Counsel's Report, dated February 18, 2010, after receiving RFAis 
regarding the missing notices, the Respondents submitted to the Commission the electronically-prepared. 
but unfiled, notices. See FGCR at pp. 4 and 5. 
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In the Matter of 

MoveOn.org and Wes Boyd, in his 
official capacity as treasurer 

) 
) 
) MUR6451 
) 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Shawn Woodhead Werth, Secretary and Clerk of the Federal Election 

Commission, do hereby certify that on July 14, 2011, the Commission decided 

by a vote of 6-0 to take the following actions in MUR 645 1 : 

1. Accept the signed conciliation agreement, as recommended in the 
Genoral ComlSCl's Memorandum dated July 1, 2011. · 

2. Approve the appropriate letters. 

3. Close the file. 

Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGahn II, Petersen, Walther, and 

Weintraub voted affinnatively for the decision. 

Date 1 

Attest: 

Shawn Woodhead Werth 
Secretary and Clerk of the 

CELA 
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